
Mayor and Council Newsletter  
  

Borough of Island Heights 
One Wanamaker Municipal Complex 
Post Office Box 797 
Island Heights, New Jersey  08732-0797 
(732) 270-6415  
www.islandheightsboro.com 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

1 

 

 

Council Meeting   August 8, 2017 
 

Mayor Silver read the following notice: The Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the Borough of 

Island Heights is hereby called to order.  Notice of this meeting is in accordance with the OPEN PUBLIC 

MEETINGS ACT P.L. 1975, Chapter 231 (Section 10:4-10).  Notice of the meeting was advertised in the 

Asbury Park Press on December 21, 2016 and was also posted on the bulletin board in the Municipal 

Building.   
 

Pledge to the flag and moment of silence.   
 

1. ROLL CALL  
 

Councilmember Asay    Councilmember Snow 

Councilmember Bendel   Councilmember Thompson 

Council President Berglund   Councilmember Wudzki 

Mayor Silver     Attorney OôConnell 
 

 Asay Bendel Berglund Snow Thompson Wudzki Mayor Silver !ǘǘȅ hΩ/ƻƴƴŜƭƭ 

Present X X X X X X X X 
Absent         

 

Also Present:  Margaret Gorman, Chief Financial Officer 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT - None 
 

         3.  APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES  
 

  A.  Minutes of July 11, 2017 
 

MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

  Asay X    

X  Bendel X    

  Berglund X    

  Snow X    

  Thompson X    

 X Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    
 

         4.  ORDINANCES 
 

  Ordinance 2017-2 to Exceed the Municipal Budget Appropriations Limits and to  

               Establish a CAP Bank ï Second Reading (Public Hearing)  
 

Chief Financial Officer Gorman explained that passing this Ordinance would allow an additional 1% added 

to the Boroughôs CAP for 2017.  If the Borough doesnôt use all the money, the extra money will be banked 

for the next year.  This is a cost of living adjustment that the State allows.  This Ordinance must be 

introduced prior to adopting the budget.   
 

Mayor Silver opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
 

Doug Platt ï 118 Summit Avenue ï Asked if this Ordinance was 1% on top of the 2% the State allows.  

CFO Gorman said it was.   
 

There being no further comments from the public, Mayor Silver closed the Public Hearing.   
 

MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

  Asay X    

X  Bendel X    

 X Berglund X    

  Snow X    

  Thompson X    

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    

 



2 

         5.  RESOLUTIONS  

 

 Resolution 2017-126 Budget to Be Read By Title Only 

 Public Comment - None 

 Roll Call   

 
MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

 X Asay X    

  Bendel X    

X  Berglund X    

  Snow X    

  Thompson X    

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    

 

 Resolution 2017-127 Authorizing the Sale of Surplus Property 

 

Mayor Silver explained that one of the old police vehicles will be auctioned off on a government auction 

site.   

 

 Public Comment - None 

 Roll Call   

 
MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

X  Asay X    

  Bendel X    

  Berglund X    

 X Snow X    

  Thompson X    

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    

 

Resolution 2017-128 Approving Application for Use of Pavilion and the Contiguous  

                                      Property by Patti Nelson for a Wedding Ceremony on  

                                      September 30, 2017 

 Public Comment - None 

 Roll Call   

 
MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

 X Asay X    

  Bendel X    

X  Berglund X    

  Snow X    

  Thompson X    

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    

 

 Resolution 2017-129 Approving Application for Use of Pavilion and the Contiguous  

                                       Property by Matthew Duane for a Wedding Ceremony on  

                                       November 3, 2017 

Public Comment - None 

Roll Call   

 
MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

X  Asay X    

  Bendel X    

  Berglund X    

 X Snow X    

  Thompson X    

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    

 

 

 



3 

 
Resolution 2017-130 Approving Raffle License #2017-02 for Island Heights Volunteer 

                                      Fire Company No. 1 

 

Public Comment - None 

Roll Call 

 
MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

X  Asay X    

  Bendel X    

 X Berglund X    

  Snow X    

  Thompson X    

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    

 

Resolution 2017-133 Appointing Raymond A. Claudio as Seasonal Code Enforcement  

                                      Officer at a Rate of $12.50 Per Hour Not to Exceed 20 Hours Per  

                                      Week 

Public Comment - None 

Roll Call 

 
MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

  Asay X    

  Bendel  X   

X  Berglund X    

  Snow X    

 X Thompson X    

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    

 

Resolution 2017-134 Special Events Application by Katie Yates for a Wedding on 

                                       September 2, 2017 at the Camp Meeting Grounds 

 

Mayor Silver explained that this was a walk-on item to the meeting agenda.  Ms. Yates would like to have 

her wedding at the Camp Meeting Grounds from 1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. for set up, wedding and clean up.  

Ms. Yates provided an insurance binder as well as a special events application.   

 

Council President Berglund asked what fee would be charged.  Mayor Silver said there hasnôt been a use fee 

established for the use of that area.  Councilmember Snow said it was her understanding that the wedding 

would be in the field towards the bluff.  The Borough Clerk explained the Ms. Yates told her she had invited 

189 people to the wedding.  She would have attendees bussed to the location to avoid traffic issues.  Ms. 

Yates would be putting up chairs and decorating the area as well.  Mayor Silver said that Ms. Yates said she 

would have 2 shuttle buses for the guests.   

 

Councilmember Asay asked when the wedding would take place.  Mayor Silver told him September 2
nd

.  

Councilmember Asay commented that that was Labor Day Weekend.  Mayor Silver asked Lt. Arnold if the 

applicants were residents of Island Heights.  He said he did not know.  The application stated they were 

residents of Beachwood.   

 

Councilmember Asay asked Lt. Arnold if he had spoken with the applicants and asked what those 

conversations entailed.  Lt. Arnold said that they told him that there were 182 people invited but they didnôt 

plan on everyone attending.  They were going to shuttle people from the Elksô Lodge, which is where the 

reception is.   

 

Councilmember Asayôs concern was that they would bring in the buses and then they would sit there 

running for the entire ceremony.  He said there seems like a lot of logistics.  Lt. Arnold said that if it was a 

bigger bus, they wouldnôt be able to get it up Camp Walk; they would have to park on Ocean Avenue.  Lt. 

Arnold said that he could move the buses out of the area.   

 

Councilmember Snow stated that if this was approved, Council would be setting a precedent.  

Councilmember Asay said that this is all for free because there is no ordinance in place to charge them for 

the use.  Councilmember Bendel asked if Council denied the request, would they have enough time to get 

another venue.  Councilmember Snow said they would be able to get another venue.   

 



4 

Councilmember Snow interjected that the Camp Meeting Restoration Association has not been made aware 

of the wedding.  Councilmember Snow also added that in the past there have been requests to use 

Wanamaker Field and there was nothing in place to guide the usage of the area.  Those requests were denied 

by Council for fear it would set a precedent. 

  

Public Comment - None 

 

Motion was made by Councilmember Asay to table this item indefinitely as opposed to denying the 

application.   

 

Roll Call 

 
MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

X  Asay X    

  Bendel X    

 X Berglund X    

  Snow X    

  Thompson X    

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    

 

6.  BILL LIST  

 

Public Comment ï None 

 

Roll Call   

 
MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

X  Asay X    

 X Bendel X    

  Berglund X    

  Snow X    

  Thompson X    

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    

 

7.  PURCHASE ORDERS 

 

A.  Approving the Following Purchase Order: 

                     Vendor:   Delage Landen Financial Services 

                      Item: Kyocera Copier Lease Agreement for Copy and Fax 

                     Amount: $3,960.00 

 
MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAI N ABSENT 

X  Asay X    

  Bendel X    

  Berglund X    

  Snow X    

 X Thompson X    

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    

 

Items B and C were voted upon together as a consent agenda. 

 

 B.    Approving the Following Purchase Order: 

                     Vendor:   GP Jager, Inc. 

                      Item: Chlorine Briquettes 

                     Amount: $2,829.44 

 

C.   Approving the Following Purchase Order: 

                     Vendor:   GP Jager, Inc. 

                      Item: Chlorine Briquettes 

                     Amount: $2,829.44 
 
 



5 

MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

  Asay X    

  Bendel X    

X  Berglund X    

  Snow X    

  Thompson X    

 X Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    
 

D.   Approving the Following Purchase Order: 

                     Vendor:   Essex Engineering Corporation 

                      Item: Purchase of Replacement Ethernet Module and Remote Installation 

        Amount: $2,265.00  
 

MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

  Asay X    

 X Bendel X    

X  Berglund X    

  Snow X    

  Thompson  X   

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    
 

E.    Approving the Following Purchase Order: 

                     Vendor:   Bayside of Island Heights 

                      Item: 2003 GMC Sierra 4500 R&R Diesel Injection Pump; Clamps, 9 Hoses, Gaskets,                   

                                        Fittings, 2 Thermostats, Fuel Filter, Housing, Fuel Filter and Seals 

   Shell and Sensior ï n/c 

                     Amount: $2,097.00 
 

MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

 X Asay X    

  Bendel X    

X  Berglund X    

  Snow X    

  Thompson X    

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    
 

        8.  2017 MUNICIPAL BUDGET PUBLIC HEARING  
 

Mayor Silver opened the public hearing.  He asked for comments.   
 

Brian Gabriel of 185 Summit Avenue asked why engineering costs are tripling.  Mayor Silver said he has a 

list of projects the engineer is working on such as the 2014 and 2016 Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG), Jaynes Avenue water and sewer improvements, Maple Avenue water improvements, River 

Avenue improvements, Lake Avenue improvements, the striping plan, Safe Routes to School program, 

Island Heights boat ramp and bulkhead repair, the water treatment plant chlorine evaluation, and a pump 

station inventory which is a DEP requirement.  Mayor Silver said they are not working on anything out of 

the ordinary.  There are fees involved with many of the CDBGôs and DOT issues.  He has many projects 

going on at the same time.   
 

Mr. Gabriel asked if there are funds in the budget for Boy Scout Island.  Mayor Silver said that a decision 

has not been made on Boy Scout Island.  He is forming a committee who will be working with the DEP.  
 

Mayor Silver asked for any other comments on the budget.  There were no further comments from the public 

or members of the Council.   
 

Motion to Close Budget Hearing: 
  

MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

 X Asay X    

X  Bendel X    

  Berglund X    

  Snow X    

  Thompson X    

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    



6 

9.  RESOLUTION 2017-131: INTRODUCTION OF 2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT  

 

It was announced that the public hearing for the amended budget would be held on Tuesday, August 

22, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

 
MOTION  SECOND NAME  YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN  ABSENT 

  Asay X    

  Bendel X    

X  Berglund X    

 X Snow X    

  Thompson X    

  Wudzki X    

  Mayor Silver X    

 

      10.  ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION - NONE 

 

      11.  COUNCIL REPORTS 

 

Councilmember Asay reported that he spoke with a Comcast representative regarding the Boroughôs 

government access channel.  The gentleman he spoke to was under the impression that the Borough was 

going to pay significant money to put the channel on the air.  Councilmember Asay read him the agreement 

with Comcast that stipulated Comcast would supply the equipment.  The gentleman said he would have to 

go back to his superiors to figure out where that would come from.  Councilmember Asay said it is in the 

works but there was a wrong impression on Comcastôs part.   

 

Councilmember Bendel reported that China has announced as of January 1, they will be taking our 

newspaper and cardboard recycling but will no longer be taking our mixed recyclables.  He was unsure as to 

what impact that will have on the Boroughôs recycling center in the future.   

 

Council President Berglund reported that we still need volunteers for the Boy Scout Island Committee.  

Mayor Silver said he already has three people interested.   

 

Councilmember Wudzki reported that there was a change to the State Aid from the Governor for the 

schools.  She reported that Island Heights only lost $730.00.   

 

Councilmember Wudzki also reported that the school construction was on schedule to be completed before 

school opens.  There were no major problems found when they opened walls.  There were a few small 

surprises but everything was manageable.   

 

Councilmember Wudzki reported that the Farmersô Market was going well.  Originally the Farmersô Market 

was scheduled to go to the last Monday in September, but the vendors would like to stay on through 

October.  The hours would be shifted to be earlier because it gets dark earlier.  There has been good 

feedback. 

 

Councilmember Thompson reported the JCP&L would be providing LED lights to the Borough for free to 

try out.  There was a concern that the lights would be harshly bright.  At that meeting Brian Hall, owner of 

Dillonôs Creek Marina, told Council they should check out Dillonôs Creek Marina to see the lights.  

Councilmember Thompson said she went through Dillonôs Creek Marina to check out their LED lights and 

found that their lights were angled approximately 45 degrees so they werenôt straight down.  She said she 

didnôt expect JCP&Lôs LED lights to be a problem.   

 

Councilmember Wudzki said that she spoke to Brian Hall, of Dillonôs Creek Marina, about his lights.  The 

lumens in his parking lot are higher than what JCP&L would provide.  Councilmember Wudzki said that 

Maria Sessa of JCP&L told her that there was no cost to the Borough to put the LED lights in.  However, if 

the Borough decided that the lights were too bright and wanted to go back, there would be a charge.  

Councilmember Wudzki said they were looking at the municipal complex and maybe a major intersection to 

test the lights out and get a feel for how it will look before a commitment is made.  Initially, there will be 12 

lights installed.  Councilmember Snow suggested Central and Ocean would be a good intersection.   

 

Councilmember Snow reported that she is continuing to work with the vendor on the new website.  

Currently, photos are being taken and added to the site.  She would like to schedule a date sometime after 

Labor Day to meet and go through the website and make changes or additions.  Once that is done, it would 

take about four weeks to roll out the site.  She was thinking about doing that on a Wednesday, since 

everyone is usually in Borough Hall on that day.   

 

Councilmember Snow also reported that recreation has come and gone.  This year they scaled it back a little.  

Paige Van Duyne, Recreation program volunteer, recommended having a form for next year outlining the 



7 

types of behavior that is acceptable and not acceptable and having the parents and children sign the form.  If 

there are any issues parents will be called and asked to pick up their child.  Occasionally a few children get 

ñrambunctiousò which is not fair to the other children participating in the program.  Other than that, it was a 

good year.   

 

On behalf of the Council, Councilmember Snow extended her condolences to Mayor Silver on the loss of 

his mother.  She said that members of the Council have all lost family members and they all know how 

difficult it is to deal with a loss, then deal with an everyday job and deal with the responsibilities of being on 

Council.  Mayor Silver thanked her.   

 

Mayor Silver announced that the Ocean County Master Composter Training Program was being offered this 

fall, subject to demand, to train citizens who can provide Ocean County residents with information in 

managing the organic waste they generate from their home.  Trained volunteers agree to provide a total of 

24 hours of outreach education and service to promote and benefit composting.  This training program is 

free of charge to Ocean County residents and taxpayers.   

 



8 

 
 

Councilmember Snow stated that it was an excellent program and the County is very generous with food and 

supplies.  The program trains people to go out and instruct homeowners in composting.  They work many of 

the events around the Barnegate Bay Festival and the Ocean County Fair.  It is a very rewarding program if 

you want to get involved with it.   

 

Councilmember Bendel said he and his wife were in upstate New York and observed the Ontario County, 

New York Landfill.  He said there were huge garbage trucks driving through beautiful Watkins Glenn, one 

after another.  They kept going north along beautiful Lake Seneca until they got to the landfill that you could 

see from a mile away.  He said the landfill is a blight on the land and it blew him away.  Mayor Silver said 

he and Councilwoman Snow say; when you throw something away, there is no such thing as ñaway.ò  It 

doesnôt go away.  It is going somewhere.  Councilmember Bendel said unfortunately the Ontario County 

Landfill is one of the places it goes.  Councilmember Snow said people donôt realize that 40% of our waste 

stream could be recycled.  She said we try to promote composting to keep more of the organic matter out of 

the landfill.  When you put organic matter into a landfill it doesnôt decompose, and it rots with everything 

else. 

 



9 

Mayor Silver reported that the informationn board being built by the post office is an Eagle Scout, Troup 30 

project.  It is coming together and should be finished in another week or two.  Materials and time have been 

donated and work has been done by volunteer carpenters.   

 

Mayor Silver said that the striping was completed on the pickleball court thanks to Bill Hummel.  Mr. 

Hummel apologized for the quality of the striping.  He said he was going to try and stripe a couple more 

courts.  There is room for 3 courts.  He is waiting to see if there is enough traffic to warrant another court.   

 

Councilmember Snow said that pickleball is extremely popular in high school.  She had looked into having 

pickleball in the recreation program, but the children are too young to participate.  Councilmember Snow 

also said that anyone looking for pickleball supplies should shop now because they are on sale for half off 

this time of the year.   

 

Mr. Hummel suggested that the Borough try sealing the court better, since the surface is rough and causes 

the ball to bounce in different directions.  Mayor Silver said he looked into getting a slurry seal for the court 

to make a smoother surface.   

 

Councilmember Snow offered the Recreation shed to store the pickleball court net and supplies.  She offered 

to meet with Mr. Hummel to work out the details.  Councilmember Wudzki said that she understood that 

Susie Davis made a flyer about the pickleball court.   She asked Mr. Hummel to ask her to drop if off to 

Borough Hall and she would post it at the Farmersô Market.   

 

      12.  PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR  

 

Bill Hummel, 18 Ocean Bend, stated that he was involved in counting cars to obtain information for the 

parking pay stations.  He said he stopped taking counts about a month ago.  He said that he makes it a point 

to go by the river when he goes in and out of town.  He said it hasnôt been crowded at the river this summer.  

Mayor Silver said it doesnôt look as dense as it has in past summers.  Mr. Hummel said he was surprised.  

As far as he is concerned, Mr. Hummel thinks the pay station issue is dead.   

 

Neal Barkhund, 277 Summit Avenue, asked about the Job John on Summit Beach.  Mayor Silver said he 

spoke to the Boroughôs Joint Insurance Fund Coordinator to see if there were any requirements when there 

is a lifeguard and public at the beach.  The answer was that it was up to the Boroughôs discretion.  It is not 

an insurance requirement when the beach is open.  The Borough is deliberating having lifeguards at the 

beach or making it a swim at your own risk beach.  It is getting harder and harder to get lifeguards to come 

to Island Heights.  Mayor Silver told Mr. Barkhund that there are only a few weeks left in the season and 

most likely the port-o-potty will not be coming back.  He asked Mr. Barkhund to be patient for the rest of 

the season.  This will be the last of the port-o-potty at Summit Beach.   

 

Mrs. Barkhund said that the lock on the port-o-potty was broken by someone and there are a lot of beer cans 

behind it.   It is a hiding place for people.  She asked that the lock be replaced because the door is slamming 

shut at night again.  Mayor Silver said he would get it fixed.   

 

Brian Gabriel, 185 Summit Avenue, read a statement in rebuttal to the Mayorôs proposal to the fire 

department.  Robert Wilbur, President of the Fire Company, passed out copies of the statement to the 

members of the Council.  Mr. Gabriel read the following: 
 

 



10 

 


